Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

8-18-2014

EGP Investments, LLC v. Skinner Appellant's Brief Dckt. 41957

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

On December 3rd, 2012 Plaintiff filed a new complaint even though the complaint was signed Four (4) weeks earlier (November 5th, 2012) and was issued a summons. On January 24th, 2013 my son was handed a summons and complaint and was not on the property located at 1681 Ruby Creek Road at the time of delivery. In good faith, on the 8th of February, 2013, I filed a Notice of Special Appearance in accord with IRCP Rule 4(i)(2). By the 21st of February, 2013, still no Affidavit of Service was filed with the Court, I filed the Motion to Dismiss contesting Service. Attached with the Motion to Dismiss was a Memorandum in Support and Three (3) Affidavits in Support. A hearing date was scheduled for May 7th, 2013, on the Motion to Dismiss. Also discovery was sent to Plaintiff to figure out whether or not they had standing. Respondent finally files on the 25th of February, 2013 an untrue Affidavit of Service stating that my son is a co-resident of 1681 Ruby Creek Road in an attempt to cover up his failure to properly serve the Appellant in accord with IRCP Rule 4(d)(2). On March 15th, 2013, I received a Response to my Discovery, which showed that Plaintiff did not have standing to sue on behalf of Chase Bank USA. I was too sick to appear and notified the Court on May 3rd, 2013, to table the Motion.

Because service was not accomplished by June 3rd, 2013 as required by IRCP Rule 4(a) (2), the Motion to Dismiss was not noticed up for hearing by the Appellant. The Court failed to dismiss the case *sua sponte*. Since February of 2013, Respondent could have attempted to serve me, but chose not to. As of June 4th, 2013, no service was made and there was no jurisdiction for the Court to act further. Also the case lacked activity for the continue to have jurisdiction. There was no notification of that either in accord with IRCP Rule 40(c).

Because there was no jurisdiction for the Court to act, I chose to not participate and stand ground on the issue that Service was not done. I am also asserting now, that the Respondent has no standing to bring the action and that the Court is also barred from determining the initial complaint due to principles of illegality of contract being unenforceable by the court.

ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

The Appellant requests that the Court review the record to see if there was proper service on the Appellant in accord with IRCP Rule 4(d)(1) & (2). The Appellant requests that the Court review the record to see if service was done in accord IRCP Rule 4(a)(2). The Appellant requests that the Court review the record to see if the Court lost jurisdiction due to improper service, improper complaint, failure to dismiss complaint for IRCP Rule 4(a)(2) violations, illegality of contract issues surrounding Respondent and/or the trial court, standing issues surrounding Respondent and/or the trial court pursuant to IRCP Rule 17(a), did Judges Mitchell and Verby have proper authority to preside on this case in any capacity when the case was assigned to Judge Buchanan, and if not does any determinations, rulings, orders, judgments made by them void or voidable for lack of jurisdiction, whether there is a violation of due process and equal protection standards in both the State and National constitutions due to trial court error.

ATTORNEY FEES ON APPEAL

Appellant claims attorney fees pursuant to I.A.R Rule 40 in conjunction with chapter 1 of Title 12, more specifically described as I.C. § 12-114.

Additionally, Appellant claims Attorney Fees pursuant to I.A.R. 41(d) which states in part to wit:

The claim for attorney fees, which at the discretion of the court may include paralegal fees shall be accompanied by an affidavit setting forth the method of computation of the attorney fees claimed.

For a great part of this case the Appellant has secured the assistance of a paralegal/specialized legal assistant to do most of his writing, research, and preparation of oral arguments before the court. Appellant asserts that should be prevail on Appeal he should be able to get attorney fees for his services as provided by the paralegal/specialized legal assistant.

ARGUMENT

I. Application of Court Rules

A. Authority

Generally speaking when discussing due process of law as it applies to the mechanics of the courts of this State, due process refers to substantive rule making and procedural rule making. Substantive rule making is the creation of courts and its jurisdiction which is exclusively reserved to the Legislative Department. Procedural rule making can be done by either the Legislative or Judicial Department, unless the subject matter is strictly reserved to the Legislative Department, as seen in Constitution of the State of Idaho in Article V, Sections 2, 9 and 13 which states to wit:

Section 2. Judicial power -- Where vested. The judicial power of the state shall be vested in a court for the trial of impeachments, a Supreme Court, district courts, and such other courts inferior to the Supreme Court as established by the legislature. The courts shall constitute a unified and integrated judicial system for administration and supervision by the Supreme Court. The jurisdiction of such inferior courts shall be as prescribed by the legislature. Until provided by law, no changes shall be made in the jurisdiction or in the manner of the selection of judges of existing inferior courts. [Emphasis Added]

Section 9. Original and appellate jurisdiction of Supreme Court. The Supreme Court shall have jurisdiction to review, upon appeal, any decision of the district courts, or the judges thereof, any order of the public utilities commission, any

order of the industrial accident board, and any plan proposed by the commission for reapportionment created pursuant to section 2, article III; the legislature may provide conditions of appeal, scope of appeal, and procedure on appeal from orders of the public utilities commission and of the industrial accident board. On appeal from orders of the industrial accident board the court shall be limited to a review of questions of law. The Supreme Court shall also have original jurisdiction to issue writs of mandamus, certiorari, prohibition, and habeas corpus, and all writs necessary or proper to the complete exercise of its appellate jurisdiction. [Emphasis Added]

Section 13. Power of legislature respecting courts. The legislature shall have no power to deprive the judicial department of any power or jurisdiction which rightly pertains to it as a coordinate department of the government; but the legislature shall provide a proper system of appeals, and regulate by law, when necessary, the methods of proceeding in the exercise of their powers of all the courts below the Supreme Court, so far as the same may be done without conflict with this Constitution, provided, however, that the legislature can provide mandatory minimum sentences for any crimes, and any sentence imposed shall be not less than the mandatory minimum sentence so provided. Any mandatory minimum sentence so imposed shall not be reduced. [Emphasis Added]

No matter whether a rule of procedure is created by the Legislative or Judicial Departments, it is required by the Constitution of the State of Idaho that such rules must be general and uniform throughout the State. This sentiment is expressed in Article V, Section 26 of the Constitution of the State of Idaho, which states to wit:

Section 26. Court procedure to be general and uniform. All laws relating to courts shall be general and of uniform operation throughout the state, and the organized judicial powers, proceedings, and practices of all the courts of the same class or grade, so far as regulated by law, and the force and effect of the proceedings, judgments, and decrees of such courts, severally, shall be uniform.

This requirement is necessary to ensure that due process and equal protection of the law standards are guaranteed to everybody in the State and is expressed in Article I, Declaration of Rights in Sections 1, 2, 13, 18, and 21. Also, the State is mandated to guarantee everybody in this State the Rights as contained in the Bill of Rights in Amendment to the Constitution of the

United States of America.

Before the State of Idaho was a State of the Union and was called the Territory of Idaho, the federal government handled all substantive and procedural issues through legislation. So the laws on court procedures where codified in the Territorial Laws of the Territory of Idaho. When the Territory of Idaho was accepted as a State and became the State of Idaho, the Courts of the State had the power to create procedural law in the furtherance of the Court. This was recognized by the Legislature with the following excerpts from two cases to wit:

"Our legislature has recognized and confirmed the procedural rule-making power of the Supreme Court. I.C. §§ 1-212, 1-213. ... This occurred in 1941.

I.C. § 1-212 provides:

Rule-making power recognized. — The inherent power of the Supreme Court to make rules governing procedure in all the courts of Idaho is hereby recognized and confirmed.

I.C. § 1-213 provides:

Duty to make rules — Limitation. — The Supreme Court shall prescribe, by general rules, for all the courts of Idaho, the forms of process, writs, pleadings and motions, the manner of service, time for appearance, and the practice and procedure in all actions and proceedings. Said rules shall neither abridge, enlarge nor modify the substantive rights of any litigant."

c.f. State v. Currington, 108 Idaho 539, 700 P.2d 942 at 943-44 (1985); R.E.W. Construction Inc. v. District Court of Third Judicial District, 88 Idaho 426, 400 P.2d 390 (1965). many of the procedures dealing with the Court as stated in the laws for the Territory of Idaho, which was retitled as the laws of the State of Idaho were supplanted with Court Rules adopted by the Supreme Court of the State of Idaho. On or about 1975, the Supreme Court adopted most of the series of Federal Court Rules, inclusive of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (FRCP).

After several amendments to the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, we have today these rules for service of process on individuals starts in Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 4(d)(1) which details the use of the summons and begins the mandatory instructions on how personal service is to be accomplished, to wit:

"A copy of the complaint shall be served with the summons, except when the service is by publication as provided in Rule 4(e). The plaintiff shall furnish the person making service with such copies as are necessary. Service shall be made as follows: [Emphasis Added] I.R.C.P. Rule 4(d)(1)

"Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 4(d)(2) details the requirements for personal service upon individuals as follows:

Upon an individual other than those specified in subdivision (3) of this rule, by delivering a copy of the summons and of the complaint to the individual personally or by leaving copies thereof at the individual's dwelling house or usual place of abode with some person over the age of eighteen (18) years then residing therein or by delivering a copy of the summons and of the complaint to an agent authorized by appointment or by law to receive service of process."

c.f.¹ Lohman v. Flynn, 139 Idaho 312, 78 P.3d 379 (2003).

This appeal is primarily a question of whether there is sufficient service of process.

B. Liberal Construction of the Court Rules and Service of Process Rules.

In the last sentence of Rule 1(a) of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure states, "These rules shall be liberally construed to secure the just, speedy and inexpensive determination of every action and proceeding." I know of no case which defines what exactly the terms "liberally construed" means, but the terms "liberal construction" has been decided to include these parameters in the case of *Bunn v. Bunn*, 99 Idaho 710, 587 P.2d 1245 (1978) in which the Court

¹ c.f. means "cited from."

stated,

"The 'liberal construction' of the rules required by Rule 1, while it cannot alter compliance which is mandatory and jurisdictional, will ordinarily preclude dismissal of an appeal for that which is but technical noncompliance." *c.f. Bunn v. Bunn*, 99 Idaho 710, 587 P.2d 1245 (1978).

Due to the nature of the question of service, and service being both mandatory and jurisdictional in nature, liberal construction of what Rule 4(d) states cannot be liberally construed, but must be strictly construed. I started with the language in Rule 4(d)(1) because it states that "Service shall be done as follows." "The manner in which the summons and original complaint in a civil action are to be served is specified in Rule 4(d) of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure." c.f. Rudd v. Merritt, 138 Idaho 526, 66 P.3d 230 (2003). Even though the word "shall" has been decided by the courts to mean in statute to be "mandatory", "The word shall, when used in a statute, is mandatory. Munroe v. Sullivan Mining Co., 69 Idaho 348, 207 P.2d 547 (1949); Pierce v. Vialpando, 78 Idaho 274, 301 P.2d 1099 (1956)." c.f. Paolini v. Albertson's Inc, 143 Idaho 547, 149 P.3d 822 (2006); Gilbert v. Moore, 108 Idaho 165, 697 P.2d 1179 (1985); Goff v. H.J.H. Co., 95 Idaho 837, 521 P.2d 661 (1974), "This Court has held on many occasions that the word 'shall' denotes a mandatory, not a discretionary act." See <u>Madison v. J.I. Morgan, Inc.</u>, 115 Idaho 141, 144, 765 P.2d 652, 655 (1988). When the term "shall" was used in Rules 11(b)(3) and 54(e)(3) This Court determined that the word "shall" denoted mandatory act(s). "The rule, employing the term "shall," is mandatory—it requires the court to consider all eleven factors plus any other factor the court deems appropriate." c.f. Lettunich v. Lettunich, 141 Idaho 425, 111 P.3d 110 (2005). I am of the opinion that "There are rules, and, particularly, 'shall' rules I think have to be complied with, and courts themselves are places where rules are followed." c.f. Sammis v.

Magnetek, Inc., 130 Idaho 342, 941 P.2d 314 (1997). Rules 4(d)(1) and 4(d)(2) are part of the "shall" rules, which requires mandatory acts to be in accordance with these expressed Court Rules.

II. Service of Process on Individuals Requirements

Pursuant to Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 4(d)(2) there are three methods for service on an individual. They are: 1) delivering a copy of the summons and of the complaint to the individual personally; 2) by delivering a copy of the summons and of the complaint by leaving copies thereof at the individual's dwelling house or usual place of abode with some person over the age of eighteen (18) years *then residing therein*; [Emphasis Added] and lastly 3) by delivering a copy of the summons and of the complaint to an agent authorized by appointment or by law to receive service of process. "Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 4(d)(2) provides that service upon an individual is proper if the summons and complaint are delivered to the individual personally or left at their residence with an authorized person, or by delivering a copy of the summons and complaint to an agent authorized by appointment or by law to receive service of process." *c.f. Sivak v. Idaho Department of Corrections*, Docket No. 39013, 2012 Unpublished Opinion No. 522. (2012).

It is not in dispute that the Appellant was not personally served. In other words the summons and complaint was never placed into the hands of the Appellant by the process server employed by the Respondent. And I do not believe that it is in dispute that summons and complaint was never placed into the hands of an agent authorized by appointment or by law to receive service of process. So, the issue of whether service of process was accomplished in

accord with option 2 in IRCP Rule 4(d)(2) by delivering a copy of the summons and of the complaint by leaving copies thereof at the individual's dwelling house or usual place of abode with some person over the age of eighteen (18) years *then residing therein*; [Emphasis Added] is contested by Appellant and most likely by Respondent.

III. Time Line, It's Importance and Errors Committed.

As mentioned in the Statement of Facts the time line from the initial filing of the complaint until a few days before trial is important to go over again, this time in detail. Using the ROA, R Vol. I, pages 9 - 10, and is incorporated herein by its reference.

On December 3rd, 2012 Plaintiff filed a new complaint even though the complaint was signed Four (4) weeks earlier (November 5th, 2012) and was issued a summons. The case was assigned to District Court Judge Steven Verby. ROA, R Vol. I, page 9. Respondent had Six (6) months to serve the summons and complaint on the Appellant in accord with IRCP Rule 4(a)(2) which is jurisdictional and mandatory. IRCP Rule 4(a)(2) states to wit:

(2) Time Limit for Service. If a service of the summons and complaint is not made upon a defendant within six (6) months after the filing of the complaint and the party on whose behalf such service was required cannot show good cause why such service was not made within that period, the action shall be dismissed as to that defendant without prejudice upon the court's own initiative with 14 days notice to such party or upon motion. IRCP Rule 4(a)(2)

Mandatory compliance with IRCP Rule 4(a)(2) for service of the summons and complaint ended on June 3rd, 2013 or the Court is under mandate to dismiss the case pursuant to IRCP Rule 4(a) (2). This is not a discretionary act. "As a matter of policy, any jurisdictional consequence of a rule should be plainly expressed in the rule itself. Loss of jurisdiction should not be a subtle creature of inference, lurking as a threat to the unwary." *c.f. Ward v. Lupinacci*, 111 Idaho 40, 41,

720 P.2d 223, 224 (Ct.App. 1986). "There are rules, and, particularly, 'shall' rules I think have to be complied with, and courts themselves are places where rules are followed.' Rule 4(a)(2) is couched in mandatory language, requiring dismissal where a party does not comply, absent a showing of good cause. *c.f. Sammis v. Magnetek, Inc.*, 130 Idaho 342, 941 P.2d 314 (1997).

On January 24th, 2013 my son was handed a summons and complaint and was not on the property located at 1681 Ruby Creek Road at the time of delivery. IRCP Rule 4(i)(2) states to wit:

(2) Motion or Special Appearance to Contest Personal Jurisdiction. A motion under Rule 12(b)(2), (4) or (5), whether raised before or after judgment, a motion under Rule 40(d)(1) or (2), or a motion for an extension of time to answer or otherwise appear does not constitute a voluntary appearance by the party under this rule. The joinder of other defenses in a motion under Rule 12(b)(2), (4) or (5) does not constitute a voluntary appearance by the party under this rule. After a party files a motion under Rule 12(b)(2), (4) or (5), action taken by that party in responding to discovery or to a motion filed by another party does not constitute a voluntary appearance. If, after a motion under Rule 12(b)(2), (4), or (5) is denied, the party pleads further and defends the action, such further appearance and defense of the action will not constitute a voluntary appearance under this rule. The filing of a document entitled "special appearance" which does not seek any relief but merely provides notice that the party is entering a special appearance to contest personal jurisdiction, does not constitute a voluntary appearance by the party under this rule if the party files a motion under Rule 12(b)(2), (4), or (5) within fourteen (14) days after filing such document, or within such later time as the court permits. IRCP Rule 4(i)(2) and is incorporated herein by its reference.

By the 8th of February, 2013, I filed a Notice of Special Appearance in accord with IRCP Rule 4(i)(2) which automatically gave me 14 more days to file a Motion to Dismiss pursuant to IRCP Rule 12(b)(2),(4), & (5). See IRCP Rule 4(i)(2) and ROA, R Vol. I, page 9. Pursuant to IRCP Rule 4(i)(2) no general appearance was made.

Judge Verby quit² as District Court Judge to supposedly head for retirement and was replaced with newly appointed District Court Judge Barbara Buchanan as noted in the ROA as a "(batch process)" on February 1st, 2013. Also Two (2) weeks had gone by and no Affidavit of Service was filed with the Court.

By the 21st of February, 2013, still no Affidavit of Service was filed with the Court, I filed the Motion to Dismiss contesting Service, R. Vol. I, pages 18-20, attached with a Memorandum in Support, R. Vol. I, pages 21-23, and Three (3) Affidavits in Support. See R. Vol I, pages 24-29 and are incorporated herein by its reference. A hearing date was scheduled for May 7th, 2013. Also discovery was sent to Plaintiff to figure out whether or not they had standing. Still there is no general appearance on my part to constitute a waiver in accord with IRCP Rule 4(i)(2). In the affidavits that I filed, the affiants all testified that my son does NOT reside at 1681 Ruby Creek Road, since 2011, which is still true today. The affiants all testified that my son does NOT act as our (my husband and myself) agent to accept service of process.

After these facts that my son does NOT reside at 1681 Ruby Creek Road and my son does NOT act as our (my husband and myself) agent to accept service of process was established on the case record - R. Vol I, pages 24-29, the Respondent finally files on the 25th of February, 2013 an untrue Affidavit of Service stating that my son is a co-resident of 1681 Ruby Creek Road in an attempt to cover up his failure to properly serve the Appellant in accord with IRCP Rule 4(d)(2).

² This is important, because I would have automatically disqualified him due to his poor reputation. Him suddenly quitting his post I thought he must have been accused of something, like his predecessor. Also, it was common knowledge that he had a high rate of automatic disqualifications or self imposed disqualifications, which left me with the feeling he was either incompetent or didn't perform well to the ends of proper justice or both.

On March 15th, 2013, I received a Response to my Discovery, which showed that Plaintiff did not have standing to sue on behalf of Chase Bank USA, nor were they assignees of Chase Bank USA, and nor were they third party beneficiaries as part of any alleged the contract entered in the State of Idaho between Chase Bank USA and I, nor was there ANY agreement entered in the State of Idaho between Chase Bank USA and I to have my financial information disclosed to any third party(ies).

Art. I, § 18 of the Idaho Constitution provides:

"Courts of justice shall be open to every person, and a speedy remedy afforded for every injury of person, property or character, and rights and justice shall be administered without sale, denial, delay or prejudice."

c.f. Jones v. State Board of Medicine, 97 Idaho 859, 555 P.2d 399 (1976). It is hardly effective for a Court to be open to every person, if only attorneys get heard and the judge on the bench falls asleep when the individual appearing in propria persona speaks to the Court for relief or to defend himself/herself. In the First Judicial District the appearance of this disrespect is more than an appearance it is actually occurring. In this case the disrespect was shown in the application of IRCP Rule 7(b)(4) wherein location of the parties was used to deny telephonic appearances even though location of the parties is not discussed in the rule. This impartiality to due process cannot be met if being heard is not done in a meaningful manner via equal access to a telephonic hearing under IRCP Rule 7(b)(4). I am tried of being abused by the court that is unjust in the application of its rules, which favors attorneys over in propria persona litigants. This is especial true when the Court expects in propria persona litigants to follow the rules of court as if we are trained attorneys. As in propria persona litigants we expect to receive the same benefits or relief from

the rules of court as does an attorney receive. I think that is not unreasonable to request. As a result by the conduct of the presiding judge, I was not afforded the same opportunity as was given to the attorney for the Respondent, and I was prejudiced as a result, due to my illness.

"Procedural due process "basically requires that a person, whose protected rights are being adjudicated, is afforded an opportunity to be heard in a timely manner." <u>Powers v. Canyon County</u>, 108 Idaho 967, 969, 703 P.2d 1342, 1344 (1985). There must be notice and the opportunity to be heard must "occur at a meaningful time and in a meaningful manner. . . ." <u>Cowan v. Bd. of Comm'rs, 143 Idaho 501, 512, 148 P.3d 1247, 1258 (2006)</u> (quoting <u>Aberdeen-Springfield Canal Co. v. Peiper, 133 Idaho 82, 91, 982 P.2d 917, 926 (1999)</u>) (internal quotations omitted)." c.f. Ada County Highway District v. Total Success Investments, LLC., 145 Idaho 360, 179 P.3d 323 (2008).

In April of 2013, I established a double standard and prejudice of Judge Buchanan. When an attorney requests to be heard telephonically it is granted, but when someone is appearing in propria persona and does not have an attorney at their side the same request is denied. R. Vol I, pages 36-38 and 45-48, respectfully. Also, the Respondent removed my husband from the case and amended the caption, R. Vol I, pages 41-43, due to their thinking that service was done and they no longer needed him for service issues. I was too sick to appear and notified the Court on May 3rd, 2013, to table the Motion. R. Vol I, pages 51-52. Still there is no general appearance on my part to constitute a waiver in accord with IRCP Rule 4(i)(2).

Also this series of events showed me that Judge Buchanan was not impartial and was biased and prejudiced against the Appellant.

Service was not accomplished by June 3rd, 2013 as required by IRCP Rule 4(a)(2) and the Court failed to dismiss the case either. Since February of 2013, Respondent could have attempted to serve me, but chose not to. As of June 4th, 2013, no service was made and there was no jurisdiction for the Court to act further.

"If a party wishes to insist upon the objection that he is not in court, he must keep out for all purposes except to make that objection.' *Pingree Cattle Loan Co. v. Charles J. Webb & Co.*, 36 Idaho 442, 446, 211 P. 556, 557 (1922) (quoting from *Lowe v. Stringham*, 14 Wis. 222 (1861)). ... Rule 4(i) of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure mitigates to some extent the rule that the party must keep out for all purposes except to object that he is not in court." *c.f. Rhino Metals, Inc., v. Craft*, 146 Idaho 319, 193 P.3d 866 (2008). After June 3rd, 2013, I did not participate, except to notify the Court of that fact.

"The service of the summons confers the court with personal jurisdiction over a party. Engleman v. Milanez, 137 Idaho 83, 84, 44 P.3d 1138, 1139 (2002).

"Personal jurisdiction refers to the court's authority to adjudicate the claim as to the person. That a court has "jurisdiction of a party" means either that a party has appeared generally and submitted to the jurisdiction, has otherwise waived service of process, or that process has properly issued and been served on such party." *c.f. State v. Rogers*, 140 Idaho 223, 91 P.3d 1127 (2004)

"Generally, where a party has not been served with process or was improperly served with process, any judgment against such party is void. <u>Wells v. Valley Natl.</u> <u>Bank of Arizona</u>, 109 Ariz. 345, 509 P.2d 615 (1973). As we noted in <u>Garren v. Rollins</u>, 85 Idaho 86, 375 P.2d 994 (1962):

Under the due process clause of the Constitution of the United States, a personal judgment rendered without service of process on, or legal notice to, a defendant, in the absence of a voluntary appearance or waiver is void, and not merely voidable.

Thiel v. Stradley, 118 Idaho 86, 87, 794 P.2d 1142, 1143 (1990). Thus, a judgment taken in an action where service of process was not made, or improperly made, is void..." c.f. Lohman v. Flynn, 139 Idaho 312, 78 P.3d 379 (2003).

There being neither lawful service of process upon nor a voluntary appearance before the court by any of the defendants, the district court was wholly without jurisdiction of the defendants. See *Garren v. Rollins*, 85 Idaho 86, 375 P.2d 994 (1962).

"Additionally, a judgment is void when a court's action amounts to a plain usurpation of power constituting a violation of due process. *Dragotoiu v. Dragotoiu*, 133 Idaho 644, 647, 991 P.2d 369, 372 (1998). The right to procedural due process guaranteed under both the Idaho and United States Constitutions requires that a person involved in the judicial process be given meaningful notice and a meaningful opportunity to be heard. 133 Idaho at 648, 991 P.2d at 373." *c.f. McGloon v. Gwynn*, 140 Idaho 727, 100 P.3d 621 (2004).

The January 22nd, 2014 "status conference hearing", there no such animal in the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, this hearing was conducted not in Boundary County but in Bonner County, before someone other than Judge Buchanan who was not appointed to be on the case in violation of the public policy of this State and who decided the Motion to Dismiss wholly without jurisdiction, without proper Notice. From the looks of the Transcript the hearing was conducted telephonically from the Kootenai County Courthouse, before Judge John Mitchell who

was not assigned to this case by way of court order and was an interloper on the case which had no jurisdiction for its existence.

"Procedural law is governed by state practice." c.f. Stobie v. Potlach Forrests, Inc., 95 Idaho 666, 518 P.2d 1 (1973). There is no practice in the Court Rules for constant switching out assigned judges for somebody else. IRCP Rule 1(c) makes it clear that the judges and magistrates cannot make up rules as they go. IRCP Rule states to wit in part: "No district court or magistrates division of the state shall make rules of procedure except as expressly authorized by these rules" The only person who can stop this nonsense is the Supreme Court of the State of Idaho by enforcing its rules and creating new ones to restrict judges from this type of ulta vires behavior.

Keeping in mind that Judge Mitchell who is also not assigned to this case through Court order, unlawfully and in excess of his jurisdiction conducted the "status conference hearing" not recognized in the IRCP and in violation of IRCP Rule 1(c).

Then, Judge Verby who had been taken off this case and was replaced with Judge Buchanan, was acting wholly without jurisdiction by his actions to interfere with this case by ruling on my Motion to Dismiss from Bonner County. Not even the ROA properly shows what had happened.

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