UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

9-19-2014

EGP Investments, LLC v. Skinner Respondent's Brief Dckt. 41957

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

ARGUMENT

a. Standard of Review

Whether a court lacks jurisdiction is a question of law, over which this Court exercises free review. *State v. L'Abbe*, 156 Idaho 317, 324 P.3d 1016, 1020 (Ct. App. 2014); *Clements Farms, Inc. v. Ben Fish & Son*, 120 Idaho 185, 814 P.2d 917 (1991). This appeal is based upon an interpretation of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, specifically I.R.C.P. 4(i). The construction and application of I.R.C.P. 4(i) presents a pure question of law and is subject to free review on appeal. *Mitchell v. Bingham Memorial Hosp.*, 130 Idaho 420, 422, 942 P.2d 544, 546 (1997); *Hutchinson v. State*, 995 P.2d 363, 366 (Idaho App. 1999). The reviewing court also exercises free review of the issue as to whether the lower court has properly applied the legal theory to the facts presented by the evidence in the case. *Schiewe v. Farwell*, 125 Idaho 70, 867 P.2d 944, *review granted, appeal decided*, 125 Idaho 46, 867 P.2d 920, *rehearing denied* (Ct.App. 1992).

When reviewing a motion to dismiss based on lack of personal jurisdiction, this Court applies the same standard as when reviewing appeals from summary judgment orders; "we construe the evidence presented to the district court in favor of the party opposing the order and accord that party the benefit of all inferences which might be reasonably drawn. *Profits Plus Capital Mgmt., LLC v. Podesta*, 39964, 2014 WL 3057303 (Idaho July 8, 2014).

b. The Court Correctly Found the Appellant had Appeared in the Case by Engaging in the Discovery Process and Availing itself of the Court's Jurisdiction.

The Court, in Judge Verby's Order (R. 73), held that the Appellant voluntarily made a general appearance in this matter by engaging in discovery. The service of a summons confers a trial court with personal jurisdiction over a party. *Lohman v. Flynn*, 139 Idaho 312, 318, 78 P.3d 379, 385

(2003). However, a voluntary general appearance is equivalent to service of summons upon a defendant and will cure any defects in service. *Hutchinson v. State*, 134 Idaho 18, 21, 995 P.2d 363, 366 (Ct.App.1999), (citing 4 Am.Jur.2d, Appearance # 2 (1995)); *Idaho Dep't of Health & Welfare v. Doe*, 154 Idaho 175, 179, 296 P.3d 381, 385 (2013). It is undisputed in this matter that the Appellant filed and served Discovery upon the Plaintiff/Respondent approximately two months after the case was filed.

Respondent references Judge Verby's Order Denying Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, finds no fault with the reasoning and cases cited therein, and incorporates that Order in this Response. After review, it appears the Court has referenced the correct law and applied the law correctly to the facts in this matter.

Rule 4(i) provides that the voluntary appearance or service of any pleading by a party constitutes voluntary submission to the personal jurisdiction of the court "except as provided herein." The Rule then gives three exceptions. "First, filing a motion under Rule 12(b)(2), (4), or (5) does not constitute a voluntary appearance. Second, filing a motion asserting any other defense does not constitute a voluntary appearance if it is joined with a motion under Rule 12(b)(2), (4), or (5). Finally, filing a pleading and defending the lawsuit does not constitute a voluntary appearance if it is done after the trial court has denied the party's motion under Rule 12(b)(2), (4), or (5)." *Engleman v. Milanez*, 44 P.3d 1138, 1140 (2002).

In *Engleman*, the defendant filed a simple Notice of Appearance along with its attempt to contest jurisdiction and service. The Supreme Court found that to be a voluntary appearance and did not fall within the exceptions listed in Rule 4(i). *Id.* In another case, a party was found to have inadvertently made an appearance by filing a motion for change of venue without joining the motion

to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction. *Ponderosa Paint Mfg., Inc. v. Yack*, 870 P.2d 663, 666 (Ct. App. 1994). It should further be noted that the Appellant likely became aware of the possibility that her participation in certain aspects of the litigation would be considered availing herself of the jurisdiction of the Court. Indeed, in her January 13th letter to the Court, the Appellant informed the Court of her intent to forgo participation in the upcoming hearing and trial for this very reason.

As the Court in this case noted, "[i]f a party wishes to insist upon the objection that he is not in court, he must keep out for all purposes except to make that objection." *Pingree Cattle Loan Co. v. Charles J. Webb & Co.*, 36 Idaho 442, 446, 211 P. 556, 557 (1922) (quoting from *Lowe v. Stringham*, 14 Wis. 222 (1861)). The Trial Court was well aware of the applicable law and the facts of this case and it came to the proper conclusion.

c. The Court Gave Proper Notice of the of Alternate Judges' Potential participation, and no Objection Or Motion to Disqualify was Made by the Appellant

The Appellant appears to have made the claim that the involvement of alternate judges in the pre-trial and trial proceedings constitutes reversible error. The Appellant claims that she would have disqualified or otherwise objected to this participation, and was deprived of the opportunity to do so. However, the record indicates otherwise. On July 31, 2013 the Court gave all parties to this action a Notice, which included the potential that Judges Mitchell and Verby would preside over this matter. The Notice was again given on January 9, 2014. At no time did the Appellant object to the Notice, though the Appellant did note her objection to attending a hearing.

A motion to disqualify is governed by IRCP 40(d)(1), which contemplates the use of alternate judges and allows 10 days for a party to object to the use of a particular judge and disqualify a particular judge without cause. The Appellant did not object to the notice of alternate judges in the

proceedings below. Accordingly, there are no due process, constitutional, or administrative legal issues to debate. See generally *Aeschliman v. State*, 132 Idaho 397, 402, 973 P.2d 749, 754 (Ct.App.1999).

The use of alternative judges, as well as many other issues mentioned in the Appellant's brief, were not raised in the proceedings below. A proper and timely objection must be made in the trial court before an issue is preserved for appeal. If not raised below, the objection may not be considered for the first time on appeal. *State v. Johnson*, 126 Idaho 892, 896, 894 P.2d 125, 129 (1995); *State v. Rozajewski*, 130 Idaho 644, 645, 945 P.2d 1390, 1391 (Ct.App.1997). After the Appellant's Motion to Dismiss was denied and her appearance in the case recognized, the case remained set for trial. The Appellant made no further objections or Motions. The Respondent appeared on the day of trial and presented its case without objection to the satisfaction of the finder of fact and law. The Appellant's procedural errors, misunderstanding of the law, and/or reasonable omissions do not create any exception to the rules and legal consequences that followed. See generally *Nelson v. Nelson*, 144 Idaho 710, 718, 170 P.3d 375, 383 (S. Ct. 2007); *Michalk v. Michalk*, 148 Idaho 224, 229, 220 P.3d 580, 585 (S. Ct. 2009) (re pro se litigant's litigation standards). Accordingly, the various other allegations of impropriety, conspiracy, or errors of law and fact mentioned by the Appellant are not properly before the court on appeal.

CONCLUSION

In accordance with the reasoning set forth above, the Respondent requests the decisions of the

Trial Court be affirmed.